
 

 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 
 

 

 
Planning Commission Meeting 

5:30 PM Tuesday, May 31, 2016 

Village Administration Building 

99 High Street 

South Lebanon, Ohio 45065 

 

 Agenda Item 

  

1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Roll Call 

4. Open Forum 

5. Review and Approval of Minutes 

 A. Minutes of April 6, 2016 
  

6. Public Hearing – None 

7. Old Business   

A. None 

8. New Business 

A. Case 16-04P: Application for Final Development Plan & Construction Plans for 
Wynstead Section 3  

B. Case 16-05P; Replat Application re: Ritchey Acres Section 3 

9. Communications 

10. Adjournment 

 

Members of the public may address the Planning Commission during the Open Forum segment of 
the agenda and shall be limited to five minutes each.  After the speaker concludes remarks, the 
Planning Commission may comment or ask questions at that time.  The Chairperson may at his or 
her discretion restrict duplicate testimony on a particular subject. 

 



1 

 

 
Village of South Lebanon 

99 N. High Street, South Lebanon, Ohio 45065 

513-494-2296       fax: 513-494-1656 

www.southlebanonohio.org 

 

Planning Commission Meeting 

MEETING MINUTES 

April 6, 2016 

 

 

 

Members:  Staff: 

Tom Hunsche Jerry Haddix, Administrator 

Jim Smith Elbert Allen, Clerk 

Dennis Rees 

Bill Madison 

Darrick Zucco 

 

 

1.  Call to order at 6:00 PM 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

3.  Roll Call. All present.  

   

4.  Open Forum 

 

5. Review and Approval of Minutes of February 11, 2016. After the minutes were reviewed a motion to approve 

was made by Jim Smith and was second by Dennis Rees. All yeas. 

    

6. Public hearing – None 

 

7. Old Business: None 

 

8.  New Business: 

  

  A. Case 16-02P: Acceptance & Dedication of Public Improvements for Corwin Nixon Boulevard. The 

improvements included a 405’ extension of Corwin Nixon Boulevard West of State Route 48. Also right turn 

lanes were added to both North and South bound lanes on State Route 48 at the intersection of Corwin Nixon 

Boulevard going West.  A motion to approve the public improvements was made by Jim Smith and was 

second by Darrick Zucco. All yeas. 

 

http://www.southlebanonohio.org/


2 

 

     B. Case 16-03P: Consider Amendment to Woodknoll PUD. The original PUD included an extension of 

Sunset Drive from the lower levation leading to a no outlet development at the higher elevation. In 2012 the 

PUD was revised to include a connection to Shepherd’s Way, a new subdivision off of Snook Road. After 

review of the current PUD they determined that constructing the street up the hill for the next phase was not 

feasible or cost effective due to the steep slope and location of water mains. Therefore, the Developer is 

proposing to eliminate this connection with access to the upper portion coming off of Shepherd’s Way. Also 

the Developer is requesting to allow the sideyard setbacks to 6’ on either side (12’ total) as to accommodate 

wider house plans.  

   Shepherds Crossing Development, LLC was represented by Joe Farruggia in the meeting. He answered 

several questions concerning the size, quantity and quality of the homes that were going to be built during the 

development of phase 3,4 and 5. Homes in phase 3 and 4 would range between 1,400 to 2,800 square feet and 

would total 24 units. They would be built by Fisher Homes and he considered them to be a slight upgrade to 

what was built by the previous builder Ryan Homes. Phase 5 homes would be even larger and would total 42 

units with a projected start date in July. They would be built by Drees Homes and consistent with the style of 

the existing Drees homes on Shepherd’s Way. A motion to approve Revision to Woodknoll PUD was made 

by Dennis Rees and was second by Jim Smith. All yeas. 

 

9. Motion to adjourn. Jim Smith made the motion; Tom Hunsche seconded. All yeas.  

 

 

 

_____________________________                 ______________________________       
      Darrick Zucco – Chairman                  Elbert Allen - Clerk   

  



VILLAGE OF SOUTH LEBANON 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
 
TO:  Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Jerry Haddix, Village Administrator 
 
RE: Case 16-04P, Final Development Plan & Construction Drawings for Wynstead Section 

3 
 
DATE: May 26, 2016 

 
 
 
On the agenda for May 31st meeting is Case #16-04P, an application for approval of the Final 
Development Plan & Construction Drawings (FDP) Wynstead Section 3 (the “Property”) submitted 
by Grand Communities, LTD (aka Fischer Homes) (the “Owner”). 
 
 
Background 
On May 9, 2016, the Owner submitted the FDP for Section 3 of Wynstead Subdivision consisting of 
a total of 29 single family lots comprising 7.997 acres. This development will connect the existing 
Wynstead development to Zoar Road. Currently, the only access to the Wynstead subdivision is via 
Cochran Road which is not designed for that purpose. The FDP has been sent to the Village’s engineer 
on this development and to a number of officials and agencies for the purpose of study and 
recommendations. The FDP has been reviewed by the Warren County Water & Sewer Department. 
Comments have not been received from any other agency as of this date. Engineering comments will 
be received and distributed on May 31 prior to the meeting. 
 
 
Code Analysis 
Section 15.14.18 of the Village Zoning Code lists the requirements for the Final Development Plan. 
The Owner will be required to submit a Final plat and will need to be reviewed by the Planning 
Commission. 
 
Zoning Process 
 
The Planning Commission shall approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove the final 
development plan within sixty (60) days after it has been filed.  
 
Recommendation 
 
The submitted FDP is consistent with the Preliminary Development Plan. Staff recommends that the 
Planning Commission adopt a motion to approve the Final Development plan & Construction 
Drawings with the following conditions: 
 



1. Enter into a Development Agreement with the Village and fulfill bonding requirements as 
required by the Village Solicitor in accordance with the Village Zoning Regulations; 

2. Approval of the FDP by the Village Engineer and the Warren County Water & Sewer 
Department, per their comments received by the Village; 

3. Review and approval of the “Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions” by the Village 
Solicitor; and  

4. Approval of the Construction Drawings by the Warren County Soil & Water District and the 
Hamilton Township Fire Department. 

 
 



VILLAGE OF SOUTH LEBANON 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
TO:  Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Jerry Haddix, Village Administrator 
 
RE: Case 16-05P, Replat – Ritchey Acres Section 3 
 
DATE: May 26, 2016 

 
 
On the agenda for May 31, 2016 is a request to approve a replat for Ritchey Acres Section 3 submitted 
by King-Hasselbring & Associates on behalf of Kenneth & Deborah Osburn and Victor & Sharon 
Ricketts (Owners) 
 
Background 
 
The case in question involves the transfer of 1.001 acres between adjoining property owners. Ritchey 
Acres is a one lot subdivision in the unincorporated area of Hamilton Township owned by the 
Osburns. The Ricketts, family members of the Osburns and owners of the adjoining property are 
proposing to transfer 1.001 acres within the Village to the Osburns to increase the size of their back 
yard. No new lots will be created from this transfer, nor will any non-conformities be created as a 
result of this transfer. 
 
Code Analysis 
Pursuant to Section 15.20.15 of the Village Zoning Code, outlines the requirements for the transfer 
of property between adjoining property owners.  
 
Zoning Process 
The Planning Commission shall either approve, approve with conditions, or deny said application.  
 
 
Recommendation 
 
It is Staff’s recommendation that, since the application meets the requirements of the zoning code it 
should be approved. 
  
Attachments 
Ritchey Acres Replat 



Warren County Legend
ih71

a42

Interstate

US Route

State Route

Local Road

County Boundary

Auditors Tract Line

Civil Township Line

Corporate Line

Overpass Line

Parcel Line

ROW Unknown Width

Road ROW

School Line

Section Line

Subdivision Limit

Subdivision Lot Line

Township & Range

Tract Line

VMS Line

Vacated Road Line

o48

This is a product of the Warren County GIS Department. The data depicted here has been developed with extensive cooperation from other county departments as other federal state and local
government agencies. Warren County expressly disclaims responsibility for damages or liability that may arise from the use of this map. Any resale of this information is prohibited, except in accordance
with a licensing agreement. Copyright 2009 Warren County GIS. Generated: 5/26/2016 3:21:24 PM

0 100 200

1" = 200 ft

Ritchey Acres






